
Democratic Service
Swyddfa’r Cyngor

CAERNARFON
Gwynedd
LL55 1SH

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Meeting

PENSION BOARD

Date and Time

2.00 pm, MONDAY, 16TH JULY, 2018

Location

Ystafell Gwyrfai, Council Offices, 

Caernarfon, Gwynedd. LL55 1SH

Contact Point

Lowri Haf Evans
01286 679878

lowrihafevans@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

(DISTRIBUTED 06/07/18)

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/


 
PENSION BOARD

MEMBERSHIP

EMPLOYER REPRESENTATIVES

Anthony William Deakin Cartrefi Conwy

Councillor Aled Ll. Evans

Huw Trainor

Cyngor Gwynedd Council

North Wales Police

MEMBER REPRESENTATIVES

Hywel Eifion Jones (retired – formerly Anglesey Council)

Osian Richards

Sharon Warnes

Members Representative

(retired - formerly Gwynedd Council)



A G E N D A

1.  ELECT CHAIR

To elect chair for 2018/19

2.  ELECT VICE CHAIR

To elect a Vice Chair for 2018/19

3.  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence

4.  DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

To receive any declaration of personal interest

5.  URGENT ITEMS

To note any items which are urgent business in the opinion of the Chairman 
so that they may be considered

6.  MINUTES 5 - 10

The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the meeting of this 
committee  held on 12th of April 2018 be signed as a true record. 

7.  MINUTES OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE 11 - 13

To submit, for information, minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting 
held on the 19th of June 2018

8.  STATEMENT OF PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

To give the Board an opportunity to comment on the Statement of Pension 
Fund Account
(Background papers previously distributed)

9.  PENSION BOARD CHAIR (DRAFT REPORT) FOR GWYNEDD 
PENSION FUND'S ANNUAL GENERAL REPORT

14 - 17

To consider the draft report 

10.  GENERAL UPDATE ON ADMINISTRATING PENSIONS. 18 - 26

To consider the Pension Manager and Senior Communication Officers 
Report



11.  PENSION MEETING DATES 27 - 28

To consider the report of the Head of Finance

12.  ATTENDANCE IN CONFERENCES 29 - 36

To consider the report of the Head of Finance

13.  CIPFA LGPS PENSION BOARD ANNUAL CONFERENCE

To receive an oral review of the Conference

14.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The Chairman shall propose that the press and public be excluded from 
the meeting during the discussion on the following item due to the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government act 1972 Information relating to the financial 
or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information).

There is an acknowledged public interest in openness in relation to the use 
of public resources and related financial issues. It is also acknowledged 
that there are occasions, in order to protect the financial interests of public 
authorities that matters related to commercial information need to be 
discussed without being publicised. Publication of such information in 
relation to investment intentions and selection of proposed investment 
companies could have a negative impact on commercially sensitive 
activities.  This would be contrary to the wider public interest of securing 
value for money and the best overall outcome and for those reasons the 
matter should be exempt in the public interest.

15.  ASSET ALLOCATION TO THE WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP 
GLOBAL EQUITY FUNDS

To consider the report of the Head of Finance

(Copies for Board members only)



PENSION BOARD 12.04.18

1

PENSION BOARD, 12.04.18

Present: Anthony Deakin (Cartrefi Conwy), Councillor Aled Evans (Gwynedd Council), H. 
Eifion Jones (Scheme Members' Representative), Osian Richards (Scheme Members' 
Representative), Huw Trainor (North Wales Police) and Sharon Warnes (Scheme 
Members' Representative)  

Others invited: Councillor Stephen Churchman (Chair of the Pensions Committee).  

Officers: Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Nicholas Hopkins (Pensions 
Manager), Caroline Roberts (Investment Manager) and Lowri Haf Evans (Member Support 
Officer).

1. APOLOGIES

None to note

1. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

No declarations of personal interest were received from any members present. 

2. URGENT ITEMS

None to note

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Chair signed the minutes of the meeting of this committee, held on 15 February 
2017, as a true record. 

Indemnity Insurance 

It was highlighted that the matter had been discussed again at the CIPFA Seminar, 
but that no definitive answers had been forthcoming.  It was suggested that 
enquiries should be made with Zurich (who had responsibility for this matter) once 
again, and press on the speakers at the CIPFA Seminar to prepare a statement that 
would provide clarity on the concerns, and justify what they had been reporting at 
seminars. 

4. PENSIONS COMMITTEE MINUTES

Received, for information, the minutes of the Pensions Committee held on 15 March 
2018. 

5. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY FOR 2018/2019

Submitted - the report of the Investment Manager explaining the treasury 
management arrangements for investing the residual cash-flow of the Pension 
Fund.  . It was noted that the Pensions Committee had adopted Gwynedd Council's 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) on 15 March, following the full 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



PENSION BOARD 12.04.18

2

Council's decision to adopt the statement on 8 March.  It was highlighted that no 
fundamental changes had been made to the historical procedure. 

It was reiterated that the TMSS was relevant to the residual cash-flow of the 
Pension Fund, which was combined with the Council's money for cash-flow 
management purposes.   Daily interest was received and this was clearly recorded 
and distributed appropriately.   It was reported that the Pensions Committee 
reviewed this arrangement annually and the recommendation to continue with the 
arrangement for 2018/19 was approved.  

In response to a question, it was highlighted that cash balances were pooled for 
investment purposes only, as economies of scale meant that the returns received 
were better and the administrative cost was shared and therefore less.   It was 
emphasised that there was no link here with the pooling of Welsh Funds.   The 
observation that the terminology was similar, and the fact that the information could 
be misinterpreted if the entire document was not read, was accepted. 

In response to a question, it was confirmed that Arlingclose had been appointed as 
Treasury Management consultants.  It was noted that the Authority had had a good 
relationship with Arlingclose since 2008, that they provided clear guidance and that 
the Audit and Governance Committee had recently expressed its gratitude to them 
for presenting training in a clear and effective way. 

Attention was drawn to the need to correct the reference to the "Housing and 
Communities Agency" under "5.11 - Registered Providers", as Welsh Government 
undertook the equivalent regulatory role in Wales. 

Resolved to accept the information.

6. PENSION FUND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 2017/2018

Submitted - the report of the Investment Manager highlighting how the performance 
of the pension fund's investments was monitored on a quarterly basis.  It was 
explained that the investment performance of the individual investment manager 
companies was being monitored by the Pensions Committee, which met as an 
Investment Panel every quarter.  It was highlighted that exceeding the benchmark 
over time was the custom, rather than comparing each individual quarter. 

In response to a question regarding the ability to identify poorly performing 
investment manager companies, it was explained that the main task of the 
Pensions Committee, except for allocating assets, was make decisions on suitable 
investment manager companies, and at investment meetings, they would receive 
detailed reports on the individual companies.  Should an investment manager 
perform badly on a regular basis, the matter would be discussed thoroughly.  The 
Chair of the Pensions Committee reiterated that detailed, but commercially sensitive 
reports, were being provided for the Investment Panel and that there was an 
opportunity for Committee members to measure and challenge decisions and 
performance. 

To ensure arrangements for good compliance, it was agreed that officers would 
report to the Board should an investment manager company perform badly on a 
regular basis.  

A suggestion was made that Board members should observe one meeting with the 
Investment Panel to ensure that the process was comprehensible, accurate and 

Page 6



PENSION BOARD 12.04.18

3

that it worked effectively.   It was emphasised that this was a request to seek an 
understanding of the process and not a suggestion to challenge performance. 

In response to the suggestion, it was noted, due to being on the verge of joint-
investing as the Welsh Pension Partnership, the procedure was likely to change in 
the coming six months and it was agreed that it would be logical to identify what the 
reporting procedure would be in future before implementing the suggestion. 

In response to a question from Unison, ‘Can your Pensions Committee provide 
details of the asset managers they use, that have been unable to register with the 
LGPS Code of Transparency?', it was highlighted that the Consultative Board had a 
template code of transparency prepared for equity investments, but not for 
investments in other asset classes, such as property.  It was highlighted that 
companies such as BlackRock, Fidelity and Veritas had signed up in the context of 
equity mandates, but property investment manager companies were still waiting for 
a suitable template from the Consultative Board.

In response to another question from Unison,  ‘What measures have been taken by 
the Pensions Committee to increase the transparency of their investment costs, in 
particular measures taken to measure implicit costs –  and I quote the West 
Midlands example’', the Head of Finance Department noted that they had already 
made enquiries with the West Midlands about implicit cost matters.  It was 
expressed that officers were not of the opinion that Gwynedd Pension Fund had 
implicit costs, and that all of Gwynedd's fees were reported in full. 

In an observation made that the turnover rate of Investment Managers appeared 
high, it was expressed that the turnover rate was very low in Gwynedd.  The Board 
was reassured that the investment managers would not be changed without a 
decision being made by the Pensions Committee. 

The information was accepted.

7. THE REPORT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE PENSION FUND 2017/18

Members were reminded that the Pension Fund's Annual Report included a report 
from the Chair of the Pension Board.  The Board was asked to consider the content 
of the 2017/18 report and make observations.  It was highlighted that the 2016/17 
report had been included as an example. 

It was suggested that a more dynamic document that addressed those elements 
where the Board had made a contribution, e.g. moral investments and 
communication, was needed.  It was highlighted that the Board had completed two 
questionnaires and it was possible that fields that required more attention had been 
highlighted in the questionnaires.  It was expressed that what had been achieved 
and the future vision/focus, needed to be highlighted.

It was suggested that the Board's contribution in scrutinising the Committee's work 
in the context of the Welsh Pensions Partnership; a meeting with Link and Russell; 
and its guidance to work on responsible investment, were worth noting in the report.  

It was noted that the report would need to be completed by September 2018 and 
officers were asked to prepare the first draft on the Chairman's behalf. 

8. RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Page 7



PENSION BOARD 12.04.18

4

Following a training session held jointly with Board members on 18.1.2018, it was 
reported that Paul Potter from Hymans had prepared a report that outlined the 
agreed investment principles of Gwynedd members and officers based on 
responses to the questionnaire completed for the session. It was noted that this 
report, 'Agree Responsible Investment Principles' had been discussed at the 
Investment Panel held on 28 February, and the Panel's main considerations were 
presented to the Pensions Committee on 15.3.18 to approve the principles. Board 
members were asked to consider the principles so that they could be included in the 
Investment Strategy Statement.  It was highlighted that paragraph 2.2 was 
additional to what Hymans had offered. 

Principle 2.2:  

‘The Fund's Committee will seek to invest in sustainable assets, including investing 
within the Wales area when non-financial investments can derive from this, on 
condition that they satisfy the requirements of the fiduciary duty.'

The officers were thanked for the information, for arranging the seminar and 
arranging for Hymans to present and collaborate with the members of the Pensions 
Committee and Pension Board collectively.  It was reiterated that the process was 
professional and transparent. 

One member highlighted concern that the Pensions Committee had added the 
above principle.  It was noted that moral investment was now a hot topic and tended 
to be a political issue.  He expressed that the Board's task was ensuring that 
political considerations did not become a part of the Pension Fund's investment 
discussions.  It was accepted that the main priority was getting the best returns, 
however, he expressed that the views of all contributing fund employers had to be 
considered, in accordance with the statutory guidance of the Department for 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG), which notes that administrative 
Authorities should: 

‘… explain the extent to which the views of local pension boards and other 
interested parties who they consider may have an interest will be taken into account 
when making an investment decision based on non-financial factors…’

One member suggested that this amendment should be highlighted and for all 
employers to be informed should there be an intention to invest in Welsh initiatives, 
and that employers should be consulted in that respect. 

In response to the observation, it was noted that Hymans could see the advantages 
of the addition and it was noted that the Fund's members would be asked for their 
views regarding the addition of 'Principle 2.2'.  It was reiterated that feedback had 
been obtained noting that there was a local desire to see local investment. It was 
emphasised that the Committee's trustee duties would have to be met, along with 
adding value beyond good returns before any investment was made.  

Another member expressed that she agreed with all the principles and encouraged 
the Partnership's other funds to make a similar comment.  She highlighted that the 
success of the Partnership's bid was Wales as  one package.  It was reiterated that 
these were only statements and that further discussions would be needed and 
robust processes put in place before they were implemented.  It was noted that the 
next steps would be key. 

It was reiterated that there was a need to acknowledge that Gwynedd was 'leading 
the way' here, but that it was also treading carefully.  There was a need to strike a 
balance between being equal and responsible. 

Page 8



PENSION BOARD 12.04.18

5

The Chair of the Pensions Committee expressed that the Gwynedd Fund was 
proactive, was developing and was facing new challenges in a positive way.  He 
emphasised that purposeful advice had been received from Hymans regarding the 
principles, that Hymans had been a part of the decision and that the outcome 
depended on how the situation developed. 

The Head of Finance Department noted that he sought the consensus of the 
Committee and the Board to accept the principles, before entering into further 
discussions with other Welsh funds.   Reaching an agreement on clear principles 
would place Gwynedd in a strong situation.  The principles would be included in the 
Investment Strategy Statement and there would be a request for Investment 
Managers to consider them when investing.  Should there be any change in 
direction, the Pensions Committee would discuss the matter and the Board would 
have an opportunity to respond. 

The principles were accepted, however, it was suggested that a broader discussion 
was needed on how the process would be implemented by considering the statutory 
guidance of the Communities and Local Government Department (DCLG).  

9. RISK REGISTER UPDATE 

The Pension Fund's risk register for 2018 was submitted.  It was highlighted that the 
register was an active document and that it was reviewed regularly. 
The following observations and additions were suggested: 

 including 'cyber safety' – it was suggested that the Council's general risk 
register should be used 

 add the word 'Committee' to the risk of conflict of interests (page 50) 
 Wales Investment Pool (page 57) - need to review the wording of the risk as 

a result of recent developments.  It was agreed that the score would be 
reported upon at the next meeting. 

 A suggestion to set a date and document version management 
 A suggestion of introducing a penalty system as a mitigation measure in 

order to ensure timely data 

It was expressed that the register was a very useful document and that detailed and 
good work had been done to score the risks. 

10. COMMUNICATING WITH EMPLOYERS - TIMELY AND ACCURATE DATA 

A report was submitted by the Senior Communication Officer, outlining the process 
of completing and submitting the 'End of Year' spreadsheet that included basic 
information about employees, contributions paid, the member's pensionable salary 
for benefits pre-2014, and the member's actual salary for the 2017/18 tax year.  To 
comply with relevant regulations, every employer within the Fund had to submit 
comprehensive and accurate data, in relation to every one of their pensionable 
employees by 30.4.18. 

Reference was made to the work of the Pensions Regulator, and to the expectation 
that the employer sent details every month, rather than annually.  It was reiterated 
that presenting up-to-date monthly data would allow for any problems to be resolved 
immediately, rather than waiting until the end of the year. 

Reference was made to the i-connect system and the work being done to 
encourage, advise and support employers to install and use the system.  It was 

Page 9



PENSION BOARD 12.04.18

6

noted that the system reduced the cost and the risk associated with pension data 
processing as the information was taken directly from the payroll.   

In response to an observation regarding receiving late and incomplete data, the 
need to identify steps that highlighted the problem was needed, along with having 
arrangements in place to ensure that performance was improved.  It was suggested 
that there was a need to consider escalating any difficulties by communicating with 
senior officers should the matter remain unresolved, reiterating that any delay came 
at a cost to the Fund.    It was reiterated, in the case of Anglesey Council, that there 
was a need to ensure that they complied with the above requirements, as a lack of 
compliance had an impact on other Fund members. 

In response to the observations, it was highlighted that consideration had been 
given to seek permission for the Chief Officer, on behalf of the employer, to sign a 
letter confirming that the data was accurate.  It was added that the Regulator had 
the right to punish should data be incorrect and late.  Should Gwynedd report to the 
Regulator and the employer was penalised, consideration would need to be given to 
the Fund's reputation, and the political issues that could arise. 

Gratitude was expressed for the information. 

11. FEEDBACK FROM THE CIPFA SEMINAR 

A report was received from the Senior Communication Officer, providing a summary 
of the items discussed at the Seminar held on 26.2.18.  He added that CIPFA 
recommended including "GMP" as a standing item for Pension Boards, however, 
the Gwynedd Fund was in a much better position than other funds in the context of 
"GMP". 

Gratitude was expressed for the comprehensive information. 

It was highlighted that the CIPFA Pension Board Conference was to be held in 
London on 27.6.18.  A request was made for Members to contact the Chairman of 
the Board if there was a desire to attend on behalf of the Gwynedd Fund. 

 
The meeting commenced at 2pm and concluded at 4.35pm.

 

  

Page 10



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 19.06.18

1

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 19.06.2018

Present: Councillors: Stephen Churchman, David Cowans (Conwy Borough Council), Simon 
Glyn, Peredur Jenkins, Aled Wyn Jones, Peter Read, John Pughe Roberts, Robin Williams 
(Anglesey Council) and Osian Richards (Pensions Board - Observing). 

Officers: Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Caroline Roberts (Investment 
Manager) and Lowri Haf Evans (Member Support Officer).

Councillor Stephen Churchman was thanked for his work as Chair of the Committee for 2016-
2018. It was noted that the additions to the role's responsibilities were recently escalated 
following establishing the Pension Board and the All Wales Fund. He was thanked for his 
leadership, his tireless work at a challenging and innovative time, and for his work as the Chair 
of the Partnership's Joint Committee, where he represented the Gwynedd Fund with dignity.

In response, Councillor Stephen Churchman thanked everyone for the kind words. He noted 
that it had been a busy but interesting time. He gave tribute to the work of the officers who 
served the Wales Pension Partnership and gave a special thanks to the Council's officers for 
their commitment. He also thanked the Committee for their support.

Councillor Robin Williams (Anglesey representative) was welcomed to his first meeting. The 
previous Anglesey representative, Councillor John Griffith, was thanked for his service.

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR

It was decided to elect Councillor John Pughe Roberts as Chair of this Committee 
for 2018/19.

2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR

It was decided to elect Councillor Peredur Jenkins as Vice-chair of this Committee 
for 2018/19.

3. APOLOGIES

An apology was received from Councillor John Brynmor Hughes.  

4. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

None to note

5. URGENT ITEMS

The Head of Finance Department presented certificates to Councillors Simon Glyn and 
Aled W Jones for completing basic training.

6. MINUTES

The Chair signed the minutes of the meeting of this committee, held on 15 March 2018, 
as a true record. 

7. ATTENDANCE AT CONFERENCES

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 19.06.18

2

Information was presented about relevant conferences in order to select representatives to 
attend them. It was reported that the Council sent representatives on a rota basis to a number 
of conferences during the year, in order to maintain and improve skills and knowledge.

RESOLVED to send the below representatives to the conferences:

 LAPF Strategic Investment Forum, Hertfordshire, July 2018
Councillors Simon Glyn and Peter Read to check whether they could attend, 
with Councillor Stephen Churchman as a reserve, and no officers.

 LGC Investment Summit, Newport, September 2018
Councillors John Pughe Roberts and Peredur Jenkins to attend, with the 
Head of Finance Department.

 Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) annual conference, Bournemouth, 
December 2018
Councillor John Pughe Roberts and Caroline Roberts (Investment Manager) 
to attend, with a representative of the Board. 

 LGPS Governance Conference, Bristol, January 2019   
Councillors John Brynmor Hughes and Robin Williams to attend, with an 
officer and a representative from the Board, and with Councillor John Pughe 
Roberts as a reserve.

 Russell Investments annual summit, London, November 2018
Councillors John Pughe Roberts and Peter Read to attend, with the Head of 
Finance Department. 

8. PENSIONS MEETING DATES

Submitted, for information, a report by the Head of Finance Department, noting the dates of 
pensions meetings for the year 2018 / 2019 so that the members could note the dates in their 
diaries and plan ahead accordingly. 

It was noted that the LGPS Governance Conference was held in Bristol on 17-18 January 2019 
which conflicted with a meeting of the Pensions Committee. It was proposed to change the date 
of the Pensions Committee to 21 January 2019 so that Members and Officers could attend the 
conference.

Reference was made to the dates of the Investment Panel that was held every quarter to 
scrutinise the performance of the Pension Fund's investments. It was noted that these were 
held in London and Caernarfon and it was confirmed that the dates for the Caernarfon 
meetings would be 21 February 2019 and 16 May 2019.

RESOLVED to accept the information and to amend the date of the Pensions Committee 
in January 2018 to the 21st.

9. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED to exclude the press and public from the meeting during the discussion on 
the following item due to the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 14, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 - information about the 
financial or business transactions of any specific person (including the authority that 

Page 12



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 19.06.18

3

retains that information). There is an acknowledged public interest in openness in 
relation to the use of public resources and related financial issues. It is also 
acknowledged that there are occasions, in order to protect the financial interests of 
public authorities that matters related to commercial information need to be discussed 
without being publicised. Publication of such information in relation to investment 
intentions and selection of proposed investment companies could have a negative 
impact on commercially sensitive activities. This would be contrary to the wider public 
interest of securing value for money and the best overall outcome and for those 
reasons the matter should be exempt in the public interest. For these reasons, the 
matter was closed for the public interest.

10. ASSET ALLOCATION TO THE WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP GLOBAL EQUITY 
FUNDS

Submitted - a report of the Head of Finance Department, asking the Committee for the right to 
act, in consultation with the Committee Chair, on allocating assets to the global equity funds of 
the Wales Pension Partnership. 

It was noted that regular updates had been submitted to the Committee on the progress of the 
Wales Pension Partnership (WPP) in setting up an investment pool, in accordance with the 
requirements of Westminster. It was explained that the aims of the Government were improved 
investment outcomes, reduced risk and reduced costs whilst enabling each constituent 
authority to implement its own investment strategy.

Following advice from the WPP Operator, and to demonstrate the scale of the pooling to the 
Government, actively managed global equity was chosen as the type of assets for the initial 
funds, and it was noted that Link and Russell gave a presentation to Committee members on 
15 March, and informal meetings were held on 30 April and 17 May, where expert advice was 
received from the consultant Hymans Robertson on the matter.

RESOLVED:

  In accordance with recommendation A, that the Pensions Committee supports 
the Wales Pension Partnership in setting up two funds, and to include those in 
the prospectus that will be presented to the Financial Conduct Authority. 

 

  In accordance with recommendation B, that the Pensions Committee delegate 
the power to the Head of Finance Department to re-allocate 80% of the actively 
managed global equity by the Fund, equally between Fund 1 and Fund 2 of the 
Wales Pension Partnership.

The meeting commenced at 2:00pm and concluded at 2:30pm.
The meeting commenced at 2:00pm and concluded at 2:30pm.

Page 13



Meeting: Pension Board

Date: 16 July 2018

Title: Pension Board Chair draft report for 2017/18 for 
Gwynedd Pension Fund’s annual general report

Purpose: Assist  the Chair to complete the annual report 

Introduction

1. It is required that the Chair of the Pension Board produces an annual report, as part 
of the annual report of the Pension Fund, to be presented to the annual meeting of 
the Fund in September 2018. 

2. This draft report (see Appendix A) has been prepared on behalf of the Chair, who 
invites Board members to contribute additions or improvements to the annual report. 

Timetable

3. In practice, the final report is required by the end of July. 

4. Gwynedd Pension Fund’s annual meeting will take place at 1 pm on the 10th October 
2018, in the Dafydd Orwig Chamber, Caernarfon, and all Board members are invited 
to attend. 

Content of the draft report

5. The draft report is written in accordance with corresponding layout for the 2016/17 
report, with several statements of fact unchanged for the 2017/18 report.

6. However, the content reflects the topics discussed during the 2017/18 year.

Conclusion 

Page 14

Agenda Item 9



7. Board members are asked to consider the contents of the draft report, discuss its 
contents, and propose amendments at the meeting on the 16th July.

Appendix A
 
Annual Report of the Gwynedd Pension Board for 2017/18 (the year to 31 July 
2018)

Background / Constitution

The Board was constituted under the Public Services Pensions Act 2013 and held its first 
meeting on 13th July 2015. The membership consists of three members representing 
scheme employers and three representing scheme (which include staff who contribute 
towards the pension and those who are retired and receiving a pension).

Over the period between 1 August 2017 and 31 July 2018, the Board has met four times.  
Board members are invited as observers to meetings of the Pensions Committee and have 
agreed to take this role in turn in order to facilitate understanding as well as communication. 
This arrangement is reciprocated with the Chair of the Pensions Committee now attending 
Board meetings, where he is accountable, with officers for the governance and 
administration of the Fund. At times, the Board has asked for its views and reccomendations 
to be submitted for consideration by the Committee.  

Function of the Board

In terms of legislation the two primary functions of the Local Pension Board are to assist the
administering authority (Gwynedd Council) to:

i. ensure effective and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS, and
ii. ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulation

Therefore, the Board is a monitoring, reviwing and assisting body, not a management or 
decision making body.

The Board operates under Terms of Reference agreed by Gwynedd Council (in a meeting of 
the full Council on the 5th March 2015). 

It is supported by the Council’s Member Support and Scrutiny Officer and reports are 
prepared and presented by officers including the Head of Finance, Investment Manager, 
Pensions Manager and the fund’s Senior Communication Officer.

Page 15



The work of the Board

Once again, the past year has been a busy year for the senior staff of the Administering 
Authority with the continuation of the pooling of investments project. Therefore, Board 
members were aware of the need to prioritise requests in order for officers to prepare 
reports for the Board.

Work Plan

In accordance with the work plan, as determined and amended by Board members, in 
consultation with Fund officers, reports on the following issues were received:

 Markets in Financial Instruments Directive ll (MiFID ll)
 Gwynedd Pension Fund Accounts for 2016/17
 Dealing with complaints
 The Risk Register
 Treasury Management Strategy
 Communicating with Employers – Presenting data timely and correctly
 Wales Pension Partnership
 Gwynedd Pension Fund investment performance
 Pension Fund Statement of Accounts

During the discussions, a number of comments were made by Board members, which have 
assisted administrative authority officials to complete their work.

In addition, input was given by the Board to thorough reviews of some public statements, 
such as the Risk Register and Treasury Management Strategy, before they were approved 
by the Pensions Committee.

Board members attended the annual meeting of the Fund in September 2017 and noted that 
the fund has performed highly satisfactory, compared with other LGPS funds.

A presentation on Responsible Investment was held on the 18th January 2018 by Simon 
Jones and Paul Potter of Hymans Robertson, the Fund's actuary. The session was attended 
by members of the board and committee. Following the session the Board gave an input 
into developing appropriately amended responsible investment principles, and support for 
their inclusion in the revised Investment strategy Statement to be produced later in 2018. 

The Board completed the Pensions Regulator’s survey on public service governance. The 
survey was a mixture of factual questions and an opinion poll. Following a discussion 
between members of the Board, the survey was presented to the Regulator within the 
specified time limit. 

The work plan for 2018/19 include:

 Update on the Wales Pension Partnership
 Update on Pension Administration
 Update on the Fund’s Investment Performance
 Update to the Risk Register
 Pension Fund 2017/18 Statement of Accounts
 Communicating with Scheme Members 
 Governance Update / Matters from the Scheme Advisory Board

Page 16



Training

During Board meetings all members of the Board were given details on the LGPS and its 
administration in Gwynedd through various presentations by the Head of Finance, the 
Investment Manager, the Pensions Manager and Senior Communication Officer.

It is a pleasure to report that all members of the Board have now completed their basic 
training ("LGPS Fundamentals"), organised by the Local Government Association ("LGA").
Board members have also attended a mumber of meetings/presentations. These include:

 CIPFA Pensions Network Workshop - October 2017
 Barnett Waddingham & CIPFA LGPS Local Pension Board Autumn Seminar  

- November 2017
 Barnett Waddingham & CIPFA LGPS Local Pension Board Spring Seminar  

- February 2018
 Barnett Waddingham & CIPFA LGPS Local Pension Board Annual General 

Meeting – June 2018

Need to add more here about the training / meetings / conferences Board members have 
attended.

Thanks

The Chair wishes to thank his fellow members on the Board, who have volunteered their 
time to the roles, and the relevant officers for their support.

Page 17



Meeting: Pension Board

Date: 16 July 2018

Title: Pension Administration 

Author: Nicholas Hopkins, Pensions Manager and Meirion 
Jones, Senior Communication Officer

Purpose: For information only

Introduction

This report provides a general overview of pension administration over the last 6 months. It 
contains information on the work that has been accomplished over the period, an update on 
various projects that has previously been mentioned, changes in the regulations and also 
lists the challenges that the department faces from day to day.

Contribution Returns

At the end of each financial year, Employers must complete and submit the ‘End of Year 
Return' spreadsheet, providing details of basic employee information, contributions paid and 
the member’s pensionable pay for the pre 2014 benefits and actual pay received for 
2017/18 tax year. 

In order to comply with The Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of 
Information) Regulations 2013 [SI 2013/2734], the LGPS Regulations 2013 and with the 
Directions issued by HM Treasury under section 14 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, 
Annual Benefit Statements must be sent to all active scheme members by 31 August 2018. 
In order for Gwynedd Pension Fund to be able to meet this obligation, we require from each 
employer by 30 April 2018, complete and accurate data in respect of each of their 
pensionable employees.

The majority of employers were able to meet this deadline, with  further reminders sent to 
the ones that have not.  As at present, out of the 50 employers within the scheme, there are 
8 small employers still outstanding, and 7 employers that we are still currently working on. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 10



We are confident that the work can be completed by the end of July, providing the 
employers in question, reply to the queries raised.

i-Connect

Over the last few months work has been ongoing in signing up employers to the i-Connect 
system.

There are now 24 Employers signed up and on i-Connect. (12 of which submitted their data 
on line by 31/03/2018).

It is hoped that 95% of the employers will be signed up to i-Connect before the end of the 
2018/19 tax year. Work will commence shortly to get Gwynedd Council signed up to the 
Service. Being our biggest employer this will be a significant step forward in the Process.

i-Connect will ensure that the member records are updated on a monthly basis, rather than 
once a year as at present. The system will also automate a number of procedures within the 
section and therefore release staff to tackle other duties within the section.

Annual Benefit Statements

Annual Benefit Statements (ABS) will this year be available online for all members that have 
signed up for e-communication. Each member has received a notification letter to inform 
them to sign up for the online services and informing them that their ABS will be available 
online. Members not wishing to receive an online ABS will still receive a paper copy, which 
will be sent to their home address (upon written request). Each member will receive 3 
letters informing them of the online facilities:

1st letter sent 29/03/2018
2nd letter sent 25/05/2018
3rd letter to be sent on 31/07/2018

Response to the first 2 letters has been very positive with approximately 8000 member’s 
now signed up for MSS (compared to 2,000 previously).

During the period the letters were sent out, the section received a significant high number 
of telephone calls, and as such we were  very grateful to the staff for their hard work during 
this very busy period.

Approximately 800 members have written in to confirm they wish to continue to receive a 
paper copy of their statements. 

It is anticipated that by sending the statements online, will save the fund approximately 
£15,000 in postage and production per annum.

All ABS’s must be sent out by 31/08/2018.

AVC Review

As previously mentioned we have commissioned our Actuary Hymans Robertson to review 
our Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) provisions. The fund is currently using Clerical 
Medical (since 2001) as an AVC provider, however, going forward with the new freedom and 
choice regulations, Clerical Medical only offer a limited Service. It was therefore, decided to 
review the current provider with a view of replacing it with either Prudential or Scottish 
Widows, as these AVC providers would offer the fund more options. However, recent events 

Page 19



surrounding AVC providers has seen both Prudential and Scottish Widows now refusing to 
take on any new AVC clients, hence leaving the fund with the only real option of remaining 
with the current provider.

Training

Training is essential to make sure staff have the latest information and skills in order to 
complete their work to the best of their abilities. 
A full day training session on the transfer of pension rights was held for all staff members on 
the 4th May 2018 at the Council offices. Mr Karl White, the Training Officer at the Local 
Government Association conducted the training session. The session was very useful and 
gave the staff a good understanding of a very complex area within pension regulations. 
Traditionally, these type of events are held in cities such as Liverpool, Birmingham and 
London, however, the LGA are now trying to hold training sessions on a local basis. For the 
price of sending 3 members of staff for training to Liverpool we were able to train the whole 
office.

LGA training is also available to the Employers – details of which has been emailed to each 
employer recently. The closest venue for North Wales is Crewe.   

GDPR

The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) came into force 25th May 2018.  It changes 
how organisations are required to process and handle data, with the key aim of giving 
greater protection and rights to individuals. 

Gwynedd Council, as the administering authority of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) for the Gwynedd Pension Fund already had procedures in place which complied with 
similar data protection principles under the Data Protection Act 1998.  The new regulations 
simply reinforce these existing requirements.

As part of the new regulations it was essential that the fund published a Privacy Notice. A 
copy of this notice can be found on the Gwynedd website:
   
http://www.gwyneddpensionfund.wales/en/Information/GDPR/Hysbysiad-Preifatrwydd.aspx 

All active, deferred and pension members were informed of these changes by either letter, 
message on the payslip or by email.

New amendment regulations

The LGPS (Amendment) Regulations 2018 were made on 17 April 2018 and came into force 
on 14 May 2018. The regulations amend the LGPS Regulations 2013 and the LGPS 
(Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014.

The Disclosure 2013 Regulations require that pension schemes inform all members and 
beneficiaries of the scheme of any change to the scheme that results in a material change to 
the basic scheme information.

Our intention is to inform the members of the changes via a newsletter to be sent with the 
annual benefit statements.

Page 20

http://www.gwyneddpensionfund.wales/en/Information/GDPR/Hysbysiad-Preifatrwydd.aspx


The main changes introduced in the Amendment Regulations are:

Early payment of deferred benefits – if a member left the LGPS with a deferred benefit 
between 1 April 1998 and 31 March 2014 they can now choose to take early payment of 
their deferred benefits from age 55 (rather than 60). The change to the scheme rules 
means that they no longer need the consent of their former employer to take their benefits 
between the age of 55 and 59. Members who left the LGPS with a deferred benefit on or 
after 1 April 2014 (except councillors) were already able to choose to take early payment of 
their deferred benefits from age 55 without needing their former employer’s consent, and 
this has not changed.

Early payment of deferred benefits for leavers before 1 April 1998 - if a member  
left the LGPS with a deferred benefit before 1 April 1998 the scheme rules have been 
changed to allow them to take their benefit at age 55 (rather than 60) or the date their 
deferred benefit will be payable without a reduction for early payment – this is called the 
Normal Pension Age (NPA). The NPA will be between age 60 and 65 depending on when 
the member joined the scheme.

The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), who make the 
scheme rules for the LGPS, have confirmed their intention to allow members who left the 
LGPS before 1 April 1998 to also be allowed to take early payment of their deferred 
benefits from age 55 (rather than only allowing payment at age 55 or NPA), without their 
former employer’s consent. This option is already available to people who left the LGPS on 
or after 1 April 2014. 

Reductions to benefits for early payment - If a member choose to take their deferred 
benefits earlier than their Normal Pension Age (NPA) they will normally be reduced to take 
account of the fact that their pension will be paid for longer. How much the deferred 
benefits are reduced by depends on how early they are taken. The reduction is based on 
the length of time (in years and days) between the date the member takes them and the 
date the deferred benefit will be payable without a reduction for early payment. 

The early reduction factors are set by the Government and can vary from time to time. The 
current factors can be found on the national LGPS member website - 
www.lgpsmember.org/more/reductions.php

Changes to pre- April 2014 AVC contracts – members of the LGPS who is, or was, 
paying Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) and the contract to pay those AVCs 
started before 1 April 2014, will see some changes to the way their AVCs are calculated and 
how they can take their AVC plan.   

If they are currently paying AVCs: 

 they can now pay up to 100% (rather than 50%) of their pensionable pay into their 
AVC plan.

 AVCs will now also be deducted from any voluntary overtime they work (if they pay 
AVCs as percentage of their salary). 

When they take their AVC plan: 

Page 21

http://www.lgpsmember.org/more/reductions.php


 if they leave the scheme with a deferred benefit they can now buy additional 
pension from the LGPS with their AVC plan when they take their benefits from the 
scheme. Before the change, this option was only available to members who took 
immediate payment of their main scheme benefits and their AVC plan when they 
left the scheme. 

 when they take their main scheme benefits they will no longer be able to leave their 
AVC invested and take it later.

 if they die before taking their AVC and a lump sum is to be paid from their AVC plan 
their pension fund now has absolute discretion over who to pay that sum to (rather 
than it having to be paid to the estate). If the lump sum is paid at the discretion of 
the pension fund it does not form part of the estate and will not be subject to 
inheritance tax. 

GMP Reconciliation

The GMP Reconciliation project is on target for completion by the deadline of 31/12/2018. 
All outstanding queries are currently with HMRC.

Staffing

An experienced member of the team, Mrs Catherine Owen, retired on 30/06/2018 following 
26 years of service of processing the pensions payroll. We are grateful to Catherine for all 
her hard work and dedication over the years. A new member of staff is currently being 
trained to take over the duties from 1/7/2018.

Due to the complexity of the scheme and the increase in workload since the introduction of 
the 2014 scheme, the section will be looking at a staff restructure to be finalised towards 
the end of year subject to Committee appoval. This will bring our staffing levels comparable 
to some of the other Welsh funds similar in size. 

Performance

The table below is a comparison of the section’s  core activities of the main tasks within the 
department for the year 2017/18 compared to 2016/17:

2016/2017 2017/2018Core Activities

Number 
of 

cases

Average 
days 
taken

Number 
of 

cases

Average 
days 
taken

Average number of work days taken to send a 
quotation letter offering a transfer in

107 18.9 198 15.3

Average number of work days taken to send a 
quotation letter detailing a transfer out

123 15.8 160 6.1

Average number of work days taken to send a 
letter informing value of benefits – estimates

1,438 6.5 1,469 4.3

Average number of work days taken to send a 
letter informing value of benefits – actual

704 3.1 572 3.2

Page 22



Average no of days taken to acknowledge death 
of active / preserved / pensioner member

23 9.1 21 4.5

Average number of work days taken to notify 
dependents benefits

222 8.1 242 9.0

Monthly pension payments processed and paid 
on time (figure based on number of payments in 
Month 12 of each year)

9,459 100% 9,780 100%

Communication

During the last 6 months the Communication team have been visiting employers to conduct 
presentations and one to one employee sessions:

 20 presentations to staff at Anglesey County Council
 1 presentation and a number of one-to-one sessions at Cartrefi Conwy
 6 presentations to Conwy County Borough Council staff
 2 pre retirement seminars in partnership with Chadwick IFA

The main role of the Communication team is to communicate with the members and the 
Employers.

The main methods of communicating with Members include:
 
Website 

The Gwynedd Pension Fund website was launched in March 2009 and contains sections 
dedicated to current scheme members, deferred members, pensioners and councillor 
members. The website also has a Member Self Service (MSS) section, which enables scheme 
members to view their pension details, update their personal details and generate a range of 
calculations online. 

The website has been completely re-designed over the last 6 months – it is hoped that the 
new look design is much easier to navigate. Additional material has been added, giving 
much more information on the scheme. 

Annual Benefit Statements 

An Annual Benefit Statement is sent to each scheme member’s home address which details 
their benefits accrued up to the end of the previous financial year and forecasts the benefits 
payable at their Normal Pension Age. The statement also contains pay details and 
explanatory notes as to how the benefits are calculated. 

As previously stated, from July 2018 the Annual Benefit Statement will be posted on the 
MSS section of our website, unless the member has opted out of e-communications. 

Scheme Literature 

A short scheme guide was produced following the introduction of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Regulations in 2014. The short scheme guide provides general information 
on the Local Government Pension Scheme and is issued to all new employees (through their 

Page 23



employer) and is also issued to existing members of the scheme on request. Copies of the 
scheme guide are also available on request in Braille, large print and audio. 

Factsheets 

A range of fact sheets have also been produced for scheme members which give information 
on specific topics relating to the Local Government Pension. These topics include 
commutation, improving benefits, child related leave, change in circumstances, ill-health 
retirement and transfer of benefits. 

Newsletters 

Paper based newsletters are sent to the home address of all contributing scheme members 
as and when needed to inform of changes in the scheme regulations. Members signed up 
for MSS will receive newsletters by email.

Gwynedd Pension Fund Road Shows 

The Gwynedd Pension Fund is available to attend employer events and provide a pensions 
stand in order for scheme members to discuss any pensions issues with pension section 
staff. An extensive range of scheme literature and general forms will also be available at 
these events. 

Presentations 

The Pensions Administration Unit is always available to offer talks or presentations on the 
scheme. 

A program of pre-retirement seminars already exists, arranged by a partnership of North 
Wales councils and organised by Chadwick Mclean, a firm of financial advisors from Chester. 
Gwynedd and Flintshire Pension Fund Administration units provide alternate local 
government pension scheme presentations at these events. 

Presentations are also held as and when needed to give information to current contributors 
on the Local Government Pension Scheme and are used as a method of informing scheme 
members of major changes to scheme regulations. Specialist information sessions can also 
be held at the request of the employer for members who are affected by the bulk transfer of 
pensions from the LGPS to other pension providers. 

Consultation Sessions (individual appointments) 

The pension unit’s Communication Officers hold individual consultation sessions for scheme 
members at the request of scheme employers. Consultation sessions are usually held at 
employees worksites and they offer the opportunity for scheme members to receive general 
and specific information about the Local Government Pension Scheme and to ask any 
questions they may have relating to their Local Government Pension. 

Members of the Gwynedd Pension Fund can also arrange an appointment to have an 
individual meeting with a member of staff from the pension section at the pension office in 
Caernarfon. 

In some cases (e.g. terminal illness) a representative from the Gwynedd Pension Fund will 
visit a member at their home at the request of their employer. 

Pensions Helpline 
Page 24



A single helpline number has been set up for all pension enquiries and a dedicated e-mail 
address is available for enquires by e-mail. 

Retirement Pack 

Members are sent a letter at retirement which outlines their benefits due from the scheme 
and are supplied with forms to complete and return so that the benefits can be brought into 
payment. This letter is accompanied by a ‘Guide to your Retirement’ booklet that gives 
general information relevant to those retiring from the scheme. 

Poster campaign 

The pension section have produce a number of poster which highlights important pension 
issues such as the nomination of co-habiting partners and death grant expression of wish 
nomination. Supplies of these posters have been distributed to employers so that they can 
be displayed at employees work sites. 

Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) leaflet 

A document covering the IDRP has been produced and is available on request.

The main methods of communicating with Employers are:

Annual General Meetings 

The Annual General Meeting is held specifically for Employers and Union Representatives to 
discuss the Annual Report and Accounts. Representatives from various professional advisory 
bodies, such as the Fund Actuary and Fund Managers also attend in order to answer 
questions on Funding, investment performance and Valuations. 

Biannual meetings 

Relevant representatives from each Employing Body are invited to attend informal meetings 
at Gwynedd Council offices twice yearly (on average), to discuss any practical issues with 
regard to the Pension Fund or its administration. It is also an opportunity to discuss any 
legislation changes that will affect them. These meetings cover a variety of subjects such as 
the Valuation, changes to the Pension Scheme regulations and Automatic Enrolment. 
The aim is to improve upon the quality of data received by both parties – the Employers and 
the Administering Authority, and enhance the standard of service to meet the needs of all 
scheme members and stakeholders. 

Individual Employer Training meetings and any matters arising 

These can be arranged on the request of the Employing Body or Administering Authority, on 
an individual basis as opposed to the biannual meetings where all can attend. For example, 
when the accounting requirements for pensions in employers’ accounts changed a training 
session was arranged for employers affected by the changes. 

Employer Seminars 

These can be arranged where there has been a significant change in legislation. 

Page 25



Contact Database 

Regular updates regarding any changes or proposed changes in the LGPS are issued to all 
Employing Bodies by e-mail or letter. The Employer Contact database is amended as 
necessary on information received from the Employers. 

Employers Guide 

The new Employers Guide on procedure is in the process of being completed, and will be 
circulated to all Employing Bodies when it is ready. This will assist Employers in their 
responsibilities as regards maintaining accurate data. Updates will be notified by e-mail and 
uploaded onto the website. 

Website 

A section giving information specifically dedicated to Employing Bodies was introduced on 
the Funds website in July 2013. This section included: 

 Employer news 
 Copies of Gwynedd Pension Fund discretionary policies 
 Employer forms 
 LGA Bulletins and Circulars 
 Timeline Regulations 
 Automatic enrolment information 
 Refund process 
 Ill health certificates / Doctor information 
 Gwynedd Pension Fund contact details 

Since the introduction of the new website work is needed to update the Employer section. It 
is hoped that this work will be completed in Autumn 2018. 

The following documents are also available on the Investment section of the Fund’s 
website: 

 Pension Fund Statement of Accounts 
 Funding Strategy Statement 
 Governance Policy Statement 
 Statement of Investment Principles 
 Communication Policy Statement 
 Triennial Valuation Report 

Page 26



COMMITTEE: PENSION BOARD 

DATE: 16 JULY 2018

TITLE: PENSIONS MEETING DATES 

PURPOSE: TO ALLOW MEMBERS TO PLAN ACCORDINGLY
 
AUTHOR: DAFYDD L EDWARDS, HEAD OF FINANCE

1. INTRODUCTION

Several Pensions meeting dates have already been set for the year to May 2019. The 
dates are set out below for convenience.

2. PENSION BOARD DATES

The Board is responsible for oversight of the management and operation of the 
Pension Fund, and makes recommendations for improvements. 

Usually, Pension Board meetings take place four weeks after the Pensions Committee 
meetings.  The meetings for the year have been arranged as follows:

16 July 2018

13 December 2018

5 March 2019

11 April 2019

The Chairman of the Pensions Committee usually attends each Pension Board meeting, 
and is accountable there for the decisions of the Committee.

3. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE PENSION FUND - 10 OCTOBER 2018

This meeting is at 1:00pm in the Dafydd Orwig Chamber.  Employers in the fund are 
invited to send representatives to this meeting. The Pension Fund Annual Report is 
presented to those attending and is an opportunity for them to make comments and 
ask questions.

All members of the Pension Board and Pensions Committee are invited to the Annual 
Meeting.

If the Pensions Committee needs to make decisions in October, an additional 
Committee meeting will be organised either before or after the Annual General 
Meeting.

Page 27

Agenda Item 11



4. PENSIONS COMMITTEE DATES

The Pensions Committee is the decision making body for the Pension Fund.  The 
Pensions Committee meetings, to deal with decisions during the year, have been 
arranged as follows:

8 November 2018  

17 January 2019

14 March 2019

A member of the Pension Board usually attends Pensions Committee meetings, as an 
observer.

5. WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP JOINT COMMITTEE DATES

The Joint Committee set up to govern investment pooling across the eight Welsh local 
government pension funds consists of the Chair of the Pensions Committee (or 
another member of the Committee) from each of the funds.

A meeting of the Joint Committee has been arranged on:

25 September 2018    Gwynedd (Caernarfon)

Meetings are usually held between 10:00am and 1:00pm, with webcasting facilities 
available at all venues.

Each cycle of 4 meetings includes one meeting in Cardiff, one meeting in Powys, and 
the other 2 meetings will be held in the other 6 locations on a rotational basis. This 
system has been agreed in order to maximise stakeholders’ access to these public 
meetings.

Carmarthenshire County Council, as host authority, arrange these Joint Governance 
Committee meetings with full translation facilities.

6. RECOMMENDATION

Board members are asked to note the relevant dates for meetings and to plan 
accordingly. 

Page 28



MEETING PENSION BOARD

DATE 16 JULY 2018

TITLE ATTENDANCE IN CONFERENCES 

PURPOSE SELECT REPRESENTATIVES TO ATTEND CONFERENCES

AUTHOR DAFYDD L EDWARDS, HEAD OF FINANCE

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This item is submitted in order to inform members of relevant conferences 
and to decide who will attend on behalf of the Gwynedd Fund.

1.2 The Council sends representatives on a rota basis to a number of 
conferences during the year in order to maintain and improve the 
knowledge and skills of members and officers.

2. “USUAL” EVENTS

The following 2 “usual” annual conferences have been arranged for 
2018/19 –

2.1 The Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) annual conference, which 
will be held in Bournemouth on 5-7 December 2018 at the Hilton, 
Bournemouth (in a change to the usual venue of the Bournemouth 
Marriott) (Appendix 1) - note that the full Council is meeting on 6 
December 2018, and

2.2 The LGPS Governance Conference, formerly known as the “Trustees” 
Conference, will be held at the Double Tree by Hilton Hotel, Bristol city 
centre, on 17-18 January 2019 (Appendix 2, item 9-12).

Page 29

Agenda Item 12



3. ATTENDANCE

3.1 Usually, the Head of Finance or the Investments Manager attend the 
LAPFF’s annual conference, together with one member of the Pensions 
Committee (usually the Chairman) and one member of the Pension Board.

3.2 Recently, 2 members of the Pension Board and 2 members of the Pensions 
Committee, together with an officer, have attended the LGPS Governance 
Conference.

4. CIPFA EVENTS FOR PENSION BOARDS

4.1 The Gwynedd Fund arranged for a Board member to attend CIPFA’s LGPS 
Local Pension Board Members’ Annual Event in London on 27 June 2018 
(Appendix 3).

4.2 CIPFA’s half day autumn seminars for Board members will take place in 
Cardiff on 10 October 2018, Liverpool on 12 October 2018, and London on 
15 October 2018.  Also, CIPFA’s LGPS Local Pension Board Members’ 
Annual Event will take place in London on 26 June 2019. 

4.3 Officers will inform Board members about any subsequent events on 
receipt of information from CIPFA or the Welsh boards’ network.

5. VALUE OF THE EVENTS

5.1 As members of the Pension Board scrutinise a specialist field which is 
constantly developing, it is essential that members build upon their 
fundamental training and obtain current information of the LGPS context 
by attending suitable events like these.

6. RECOMMENDATION

6.1 The Board is asked to select representatives from the Pension Board to 
attend the above events.

Page 30



ATODIAD 1 / APPENDIX 1 
 

From: Chair@lapfforum.org <chair@lapfforum.org>  
Sent: 25 May 2018 11:55 
To: Chair@lapfforum.org 
Subject: Email to be received by all lapff members version 2 
 
 

 
 
Dear LAPFF Members 
  
The Annual LAPFF Conference – 5 - 7 December 2018  
  
The LAPFF Executive have decided that although the Bournemouth Marriott has been a great venue for the 
conference over the years that it is now time for a fresh venue.  So, the conference is not moving out of 
Bournemouth just into a new hotel venue.  The Hilton in Bournemouth has been chosen as it seems to fulfil all 
the needs of a 21st century conference, having state of the art conference facilities together with well-
appointed rooms and leisure facilities for the delegates.  You can visit the hotel website here: 
  
http://www3.hilton.com/en/hotels/united-kingdom/hilton-bournemouth-
BOHTMHI/index.html?WT.mc_id=zELWAKN0EMEA1HI2DMH3LocalSearch4DGGenericx6BOHTMHI 
  
If you would like to pre book your delegate place at the LAPFF conference please click on the link below 
 

 
 

Local Authority delegates, non-LAPFF members and ‘not-for -profit’ organisations: £550+ VAT (£110) = £660 
Delegates not in the above categories, delegate rate:  £2100+VAT (£ 420) = £2,520 

  
Once your registration details have been checked you will be sent a link to the reservations page for the LAPFF 
conference block room bookings at the Hilton in Bournemouth.   
  
The Hilton Hotel has a sister hotel Hamptons Hilton which is located next to the main Hilton Hotel, there will 
also be rooms available at this hotel.  You can visit the hotel website here: 
  
http://hamptoninn3.hilton.com/en/hotels/united-kingdom/hampton-by-hilton-bournemouth-
BOHCCHX/index.html?WT.mc_id=zELWAKN0EMEA1HP2DMH3LocalSearch4DGGenericx6BOHCCHX 
  
You will also receive a link to the reservations page at The Hampton once your booking is received.  I look 
forward to receiving your delegate booking, as always LAPFF members have two free places at the 
conference.   
  
Best regards 
  
Janice Hayward 

Page 31

mailto:Chair@lapfforum.org
mailto:chair@lapfforum.org
mailto:Chair@lapfforum.org
http://www3.hilton.com/en/hotels/united-kingdom/hilton-bournemouth-BOHTMHI/index.html?WT.mc_id=zELWAKN0EMEA1HI2DMH3LocalSearch4DGGenericx6BOHTMHI
http://www3.hilton.com/en/hotels/united-kingdom/hilton-bournemouth-BOHTMHI/index.html?WT.mc_id=zELWAKN0EMEA1HI2DMH3LocalSearch4DGGenericx6BOHTMHI
http://hamptoninn3.hilton.com/en/hotels/united-kingdom/hampton-by-hilton-bournemouth-BOHCCHX/index.html?WT.mc_id=zELWAKN0EMEA1HP2DMH3LocalSearch4DGGenericx6BOHCCHX
http://hamptoninn3.hilton.com/en/hotels/united-kingdom/hampton-by-hilton-bournemouth-BOHCCHX/index.html?WT.mc_id=zELWAKN0EMEA1HP2DMH3LocalSearch4DGGenericx6BOHCCHX
https://form.jotformeu.com/81422848794367


Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES
	7 MINUTES OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	9 PENSION BOARD CHAIR (draft report) for GWYNEDD PENSION FUND'S ANNUAL GENERAL REPORT
	10 GENERAL UPDATE ON ADMINISTRATING PENSIONS.
	11 PENSION MEETING DATES
	12 ATTENDANCE IN CONFERENCES
	Atodiad 1-Appendix 1 LAPFF Bournemouth
	Atodiad 2-Appendix 2 LGA Circular 306
	Atodiad 3-Appendix 3 LGPS Annual Event


